
     CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE     
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – March 13, 2023 Page 1 of 2 

Date: March 13, 2023 

Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   
Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 

Time: 5:00 p.m. 

Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment use 
the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record may be 
submitted to aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm meeting day.  

1. Call to Order

A. Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Agenda

A. Pg. 1: Agenda

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda)

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)

A. Excused Absences:
B. Pg. 3: Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of February 27, 2023
C. Pg. 6: Approval of:

Pg. 32: For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling 
$4,637,856.77 (AP Warrant Numbers 58561, 58585, 58583, 58592, 58603, 58605). 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action)
A. Pg. 70: Board Policy 3.30 Credit Card Usage – Chief Morrow

7. New Business (First Reading)

8. Considerations and Requests

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58557 to 58622 totaling: $ 6,727,707.73 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107731 to 107736 totaling: $ 21,902.06 

GRAND TOTAL $ 6,749,609.79 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org


 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – March 13, 2023   Page 2 of 2 

 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
A. Pg. 80: Finance – FD Robacker  

 

B. Pg. 91: Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 

C. Pg. 93: Training – AC Benning 
 

D. Pg. 94: Field Operations – AC Kent  
 

E. Pg. 95: EMS – AC Bouchard 
 

F. Pg. 96: DC Operations – DC Stueve  
 

G. Pg. 97: Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Morrow 
 

10. Correspondence 
A. Pg. 98: Employee Recognition 

  
11. Commissioner Comments 
 
12. Adjournment 
 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   February 27, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

February 27, 2023 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue to order at District Headquarters – 17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma at 4:00 p.m.  
A remote attendance option was available to the public. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Chief Morrow, Deputy Chiefs 
VanKeulen and Stueve, Assistant Chiefs Berdan and Kent, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, 
Admin Support Specialist McInnis, and Executive Assistant Paramapoonya, recorder. 
Assistant Chief Benning joined the meeting at 4:11 p.m. Assistant Chief McKenzie joined 
the meeting at 4:41 p.m. President James joined the meeting at 4:55 p.m. Battalion Chief 
Cable joined the meeting at 5:04 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chair Holm led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences: Ex-Officio Door 
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of February 13, 2023    
C. Approval of: 

 

 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $595,326.34. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
A. Board Policy 3.39 Property Management 

 
FD Robacker reviewed Board Policy 3.39 Property Management. No changes were made 
after the First Reading. Commissioner Coleman moved and Commissioner Mitchell 
seconded to approve Board Policy 3.39 Property Management. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58483 to 58556 totaling: $ 593,837.43 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107729 to 107730 totaling: $ 1,488.91 

GRAND TOTAL $ 595,326.34 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   February 27, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 

A. Board Policy 3.30 Credit Card Usage  
 

Chief Morrow reviewed Board Policy 3.30 Credit Card Usage. All feedback and/or 
comments from the Board over the next two weeks will be included in revisions. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

A. 2013 General Obligation Bond Refunding 
 

FD Robacker reviewed the 2013 General Obligation Bond Refunding and Engagement 
Letter. Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to authorize 
Chief Morrow to sign the engagement letter to hire DA Davidson as our underwriter for the 
2013 Unlimited Tax General Obligation (UTGO) bond refunding. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
B. Inspiration Works LLC 

 
Chief Morrow explained the Retainer Agreement from Inspiration Works LLC and the need 
to increase leadership development throughout the organization.  Commissioner 
Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to approve the Fire Chief to sign 
and execute the Inspiration Works LLC Retainer Agreement as presented. MOTION 
CARRIED. 
 
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 
A. Finance/FD Robacker: FD Robacker reviewed the Finance Division Report, 

including the December Prelim Checkbook. 
 

B. Logistics/AC Stueve: DC VanKeulen reviewed the Logistics Division Report. The 
new Facilities Tech, Chris Noble, started employment with CPFR this month.  
 

C. Prevention & Education/AC Berdan: AC Berdan reviewed the Prevention & 
Education Division Report. The first Scout Day will be held at Station 72 on 
Saturday, March 11th from 1000-1200.  

 

D. Fire Chief’s Report/Chief Morrow:  
 
Expanded Staff Topics 
Chief Morrow provided a presentation to the Board regarding the topics of Deployment & 
Staffing, Capital Projects, Commissioner Elections, Regional Cooperative Efforts, and 
Innovation within the District.  
 
 
 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   February 27, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
A. IMT Garner Unit Citation Nomination Letter 

 
Chair Holm thanked Chief VanKeulen for taking the time to write the IMT Garner Unit 
Citation Nomination Letter.  
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Chair Holm: Great presentation, Chief Morrow!  
 

Vice Chair Stringfellow: Vice Chair Stringfellow inquired about the idea of reaching a larger 
audience by possibly adjusting the time of future Board Meetings.  
 

Commissioner Willis: Everyone’s hard work is greatly appreciated. Very good presentation.  
 

Commissioner Coleman: Thank you, Chief for a great presentation. Keep it up! 
 

Commissioner Mitchell: Great job to Chief Morrow and the team. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Willis 
seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 
 
 
 

            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 

      
ARIEL PARAMAPOONYA 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: March 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Board Policy 3.30 Credit Card Usage  

Attachments:  Board Policy 3.30 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
“I move to approve Board Policy 3.30 - Credit Card Usage as presented by Staff.” 
 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Board Policy 3.30 – Credit Card Usage was presented for first reading at the February 27, 2023 
Board Meeting. The policy is now ready for its second reading and adoption. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
N/A 
 

70



 

Policy 330 Credit Card Usage  Page 1 of 4 

 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 330 

 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Credit Card Usage 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  January 1, 2022 
 
OWNER: Finance Director 
 
REAUTHORIZATION YEAR: 2025 
 
FORMS AND ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment 330.A Credit Card User Agreement 
 
INTENT:  
Implement district policy for the issuance, use, and control of District issued credit cards 
 
1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 
2.0 POLICIES 
2.1 ISSUANCE:  Central Pierce Fire & Rescue will issue credit cards to personnel in 

the following positions:  Fire Chief, Deputy Chiefs, Assistant Chiefs, Battalion 
Chiefs, Finance Director, Human Resource Director, IT Director, Deputy Fire 
Marshals, Training Captain(s), EMS Captain(s), Executive Assistant(s), 
Purchasing Manager, IT technician(s), Senior Accountant, Procurement 
Coordinator, Ops Analyst(s), HR Analyst(s), CGRO, Central Stores Main Runner, 
and others as assigned by the Fire Chief.. 

2.2 DISTRIBUTION: Credit cards will be obtained and distributed through the 
Finance office 

2.3 LIMITS: In general, credit card limits shall not exceed: 
Chiefs - up to $5k. 
Support specialists - up to $8k (Training and Shop only). 
Support specialist – up to $2k (Front desk) 
Purchasing Manager – up to $10k. 
Finance Director – up to $10k. 
However, on a case by case basis, credit cards may have temporary increase 
with the approval of the Finance Director or the Fire Chief.   

 
3.0 PROCEDURES 
3.1 USE:  Usage will be closely monitored by the Finance Division and shall be used 

in compliance with the following: 
3.1.1 Travel:  Credit cards may be used by District personnel who are in travel 

status on official District business for meals, lodging, airfare, parking, taxi, 

71



 

Policy 330 Credit Card Usage  Page 2 of 4 

car rental, and fuel in accordance with the amounts allowed per the travel 
policy (see Advanced Travel Policy #306). Use of the District credit card is 
for exceptions only; all attempts must be made to receive funds prior to 
departure through the Advanced Travel process. Official District business 
includes but is not limited to travel for Puget Sound Strike Team or State 
mobilizations and prospective employee background investigations. 
3.1.1.1 Use of the credit card for meals shall be restricted to the per diem 

amount referenced by District Resolution 20-08, utilizing Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS) Publication 1542.  Any charges that 
exceed the per diem amount are to be reimbursed to the District 
when the District Expense Claim Form (with charge slips 
attached) is submitted.  The receipt must include the name of the 
business in which the purchase was made, an itemization of the 
meals purchased, the date, and total amount charged.  Receipts 
that do not contain the required information will need to have an 
explanation attached stating why the required information is 
missing and a list of the missing information, to the best of the 
credit card user’s knowledge.  Name(s) of others who partook of 
meals, or otherwise incurred expenses (i.e. retreat meals, etc.) 
must be listed on the District Expense Claim Form.  State whether 
they were District personnel.  If they are not, state who they were 
and what connection they had with District business.   

3.1.1.2 Tips for meals are not in addition to the per diem amount, but 
must also be included within that amount or they are not 
reimbursable. 

3.1.1.3 Alcohol may not be purchased with the credit card. 
3.1.1.4 Cards may not be used for cash advances, entertainment, or 

hotel/motel amenities. 
3.1.2 Registration or Enrollment/Texts and Training Materials:  Credit cards may 

be used for conference registration related to official District business, 
only after approval on the Outside Class Request Form.  Payment via 
credit card will only be approved if vendor will not accept a check as 
payment. 

3.1.3 Purchases:  Credit cards may be used for the purchase of goods or 
supplies if vendors are unable to comply with normal District purchasing 
procedures (see Purchasing Policies #327 and #353).   
3.1.3.1 The credit card is not to be used as a means to bypass the 

normal District purchasing procedures. 
3.1.3.2 Cards may not be used for personal purchases. 
3.1.3.3 Cards may not be used for cash advances. 
3.1.3.4 Cards may not be used to purchase services (i.e. consultant fees, 

temporary help, equipment, etc.)  Cards may be used to secure 
lodging, airfare, and rental cars for District personnel who are in 
travel status on official District business when the use of 
Advanced Travel funds is not possible.  Cards may be used for 
emergent vehicle repair services in the event that District-

72



 

Policy 330 Credit Card Usage  Page 3 of 4 

provided vehicle maintenance and/or service cannot reasonably 
be performed and it is necessary to ensure the safety of District 
personnel and/or property.  Refer to the definition of emergency 
purchases in section 1.7 of purchasing policy #353 for 
clarification. 

3.1.3.5 Cards may not be used to pay other invoices or statements. 
3.1.3.6 Cards may be used to purchase food related items during the 

course of official district business which include but is not limited 
to the following:  
3.1.3.6.1 During extended emergency responses it is appropriate 

to purchase rehabilitation supplies (i.e. food, hydrating 
drinks, etc.) in order to maintain energy levels and/or 
ensure the safety of District personnel and Mutual Aid 
personnel.  

3.1.3.6.2 In the event that meetings, classes or other District 
business are held over a mealtime hour and time does 
not allow for offsite food acquisition, it is appropriate to 
furnish food in order to accomplish set forth business. 

3.1.3.6.3 During testing processes for new hires and/or 
promotions when it is the best interest of the District to 
keep assessors on-site and available so candidates 
may go through their testing processes in a timely 
manner. 

3.2 USER RESPONSIBILITY:  Responsibility of the user/carrier of the card is as 
described below. 
3.2.1 Employees will sign a Credit Card User Agreement for all cards issued in 

their name. 
3.2.2 The card holder shall be the sole user and retain possession of the card at 

all times and be responsible for all charges made while it is in his/her 
possession. 

3.2.3 User shall reconcile the transaction in the accounting software (currently 
OneSolution) which includes attaching the receipt, providing the description 
of the item purchased, and assigning the cost to a budget line item.  

3.2.4 The user shall reconcile the transaction in the accounting software within 
seven (7) business days following the purchase transaction being uploaded 
and available for reconciliation in the accounting software.  If the transaction 
remains undocumented for 60 days after the upload, the purchasing card 
will be revoked. The user shall repay any improper charges or 
undocumented charges at the time such events occur. Any charges not paid 
at this time will be withheld from the individual’s next paycheck and their 
supervisor will be notified of the claim. 

3.2.5 The user must obtain authorization for anything not clearly described 
above as allowable.  Failure to do so may cause user to be financially 
responsible for the charge. 

3.2.6 Lost or stolen cards must be reported to the Finance Director immediately. 

73



 

Policy 330 Credit Card Usage  Page 4 of 4 

3.2.7 District credit cards will be returned in the event the employment 
relationship is terminated. 

3.2.8 Abuse of the District issued credit card could result in the credit card being 
confiscated. 

 
3.3 DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS:  Employees authorized to use District 

credit cards are responsible for providing all necessary documentation required 
to process payment on a timely basis.  Reconciliation through the software will be 
completed and the necessary documentation provided as follows: 
3.3.1 Attach the supporting documentation in accounting software within seven 

(7) business days following a purchase.   If later than seven (7) days, an 
explanation as to why it is late will need to be attached. 

3.3.2 Appropriate supporting documentation includes but is not limited to 
delivery confirmations, receipts and/or packing slips. 

3.3.3 Employees will document Internet purchases by printing out the purchase 
confirmation page from the vendor’s website. 

3.3.4 Employees will document phone purchases by signing a copy of the page 
the item was ordered from (i.e. catalog page, brochure, flyer, etc.) 

3.3.5 State whether others who traveled, partook of meals, or otherwise 
incurred expenses were District personnel.  If they are not, state who they 
were and what connection they had with District business.   

3.3.6 Attach original receipts to the software.  The receipt must include the 
name of the business in which the purchase was made, an itemization of 
the goods or supplies purchased, date, and total amount charged.  If 
receipt does not contain the required information, an explanation as to 
why the information is missing will need to be attached. 

3.3.7 Include the General Ledger account code in which the purchase is to be 
charged on the form. 

3.4 CONTROL:  The elected Board of Commissioners, or their designee, will review 
expenditures in conjunction with the normal warrant review and approval.  The 
Fire Chief or Finance Director must approve any exceptions to this policy in 
advance. 

 
4.0 REFERENCE 
4.1 RCW 43.09.2855 
4.2 Budgeting & Accounting Reporting System (BARS) 
4.3 Washington State Auditor’s Office 
4.4 CPFR Resolution # 06-09. 
4.5 Advanced Travel Policy #306 
4.6 Purchasing Policy #327 
4.7 District Expense/Credit Card/Petty Cash Claim Form 

74

file://///infoportal.centralpierce.org/DavWWWRoot/Policies/Section%20300%20-%20Administration/Policy%20306%20-%20Advance%20Travel%20Payment%20and%20Reimbursement
file://///infoportal.centralpierce.org/DavWWWRoot/Policies/Section%20300%20-%20Administration/Policy%20327%20-%20Purchasing%20Policy


CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 3.30 

ORIGINATED: January 1, 2022 

APPROVED: March 13, 2023 

EFFECTIVE: March 13, 2023

SUBJECT: CREDIT CARD USAGE 

PURPOSE: Implement district policy for the issuance, use, and control of District issued credit 

cards. 

POLICY: 

I. ISSUANCE:

A. Central Pierce Fire & Rescue will issue credit cards to personnel in the following

positions:

1. Fire Chief, Deputy Chiefs, Assistant Chiefs, Battalion Chiefs, Finance

Director, Human Resource Director, IT Director, Deputy Fire Marshals,

Training Captain(s), EMS Captain(s), Executive Assistant(s);

2. Purchasing Manager, IT technician(s), Senior Accountant, Procurement

Coordinator, Ops Analyst(s), HR Analyst(s), CGRO, Central Stores Main

Runner, and others as assigned by the Fire Chief.

II. DISTRIBUTION: Credit cards will be obtained and distributed through the Finance office.

III. LIMITS: In general, credit card limits shall not exceed:

A. Chiefs - up to $5k.

B. Support specialists - up to $8k (Training and Shop only).

C. Support specialist – up to $2k (Front desk)

D. Purchasing Manager – up to $10k.

E. Finance Director – up to $10k.

F. However, on a case by case basis, credit cards may have temporary increase

with the approval of the Finance Director or the Fire Chief.

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with and operate within the 

parameters of this Board Policy 

75



PROCEDURE: 

I. USE:  Usage will be closely monitored by the Finance Division and shall be used in

compliance with the following:

A. Travel:  Credit cards may be used by District personnel who are in travel status

on official District business for meals, lodging, airfare, parking, taxi, car rental,

and fuel in accordance with the amounts allowed per the travel policy (see

Advanced Travel Policy #306). Use of the District credit card is for exceptions

only; all attempts must be made to receive funds prior to departure through the

Advanced Travel process. Official District business includes but is not limited to

travel for Puget Sound Strike Team or State mobilizations and prospective

employee background investigations.

1. Use of the credit card for meals shall be restricted to the per diem

amount referenced by District Resolution 20-08, utilizing Internal

Revenue Service (IRS) Publication 1542.  Any charges that exceed the

per diem amount are to be reimbursed to the District when the District

Expense Claim Form (with charge slips attached) is submitted.  The

receipt must include the name of the business in which the purchase

was made, an itemization of the meals purchased, the date, and total

amount charged.  Receipts that do not contain the required information

will need to have an explanation attached stating why the required

information is missing and a list of the missing information, to the best

of the credit card user’s knowledge.  Name(s) of others who partook of

meals, or otherwise incurred expenses (i.e. retreat meals, etc.) must be

listed on the District Expense Claim Form.  State whether they were

District personnel.  If they are not, state who they were and what

connection they had with District business.

2. Tips for meals are not in addition to the per diem amount, but must also

be included within that amount or they are not reimbursable.

3. Alcohol may not be purchased with the credit card.

4. Cards may not be used for cash advances, entertainment, or

hotel/motel amenities.

B. Registration or Enrollment/Texts and Training Materials:  Credit cards may be

used for conference registration related to official District business, only after

approval on the Outside Class Request Form.  Payment via credit card will only

be approved if vendor will not accept a check as payment.

76



C. Purchases:  Credit cards may be used for the purchase of goods or supplies if

vendors are unable to comply with normal District purchasing procedures (see

Purchasing Policies 3.27 and 3.53).

1. The credit card is not to be used as a means to bypass the normal

District purchasing procedures.

2. Cards may not be used for personal purchases.

3. Cards may not be used for cash advances.

4. Cards may not be used to purchase services (i.e. consultant fees,

temporary help, equipment, etc.)  Cards may be used to secure lodging,

airfare, and rental cars for District personnel who are in travel status on

official District business when the use of Advanced Travel funds is not

possible.  Cards may be used for emergent vehicle repair services in the

event that District- provided vehicle maintenance and/or service cannot

reasonably be performed and it is necessary to ensure the safety of

District personnel and/or property.  Refer to the definition of

emergency purchases in section 1.7 of purchasing policy #353 for

clarification.

5. Cards may not be used to pay other invoices or statements.

6. Cards may be used to purchase food related items during the course of

official district business which include but is not limited to the following:

a. During extended emergency responses it is appropriate to

purchase rehabilitation supplies (i.e. food, hydrating drinks,

etc.) in order to maintain energy levels and/or ensure the safety

of District personnel and Mutual Aid personnel.

b. In the event that meetings, classes or other District business are

held over a mealtime hour and time does not allow for offsite

food acquisition, it is appropriate to furnish food in order to

accomplish set forth business.

c. During testing processes for new hires and/or promotions when

it is the best interest of the District to keep assessors on-site

and available so candidates may go through their testing

processes in a timely manner.

II. USER RESPONSIBILITY:  Responsibility of the user/carrier of the card is as described

below.

77



A. Employees will sign a Credit Card User Agreement for all cards issued in their

name.

B. The card holder shall be the sole user and retain possession of the card at all

times and be responsible for all charges made while it is in his/her possession.

C. User shall reconcile the transaction in the accounting software (currently

OneSolution) which includes attaching the receipt, providing the description of

the item purchased, and assigning the cost to a budget line item.

D. The user shall reconcile the transaction in the accounting software within seven

(7) business days following the purchase transaction being uploaded and

available for reconciliation in the accounting software.  If the transaction

remains undocumented for 60 days after the upload, the purchasing card will be

revoked. The user shall repay any improper charges or undocumented charges

at the time such events occur. Any charges not paid at this time will be withheld

from the individual’s next paycheck and their supervisor will be notified of the

claim.

E. The user must obtain authorization for anything not clearly described above as

allowable.  Failure to do so may cause user to be financially responsible for the

charge.

F. Lost or stolen cards must be reported to the Finance Director immediately.

G. District credit cards will be returned in the event the employment relationship is

terminated.

H. Abuse of the District issued credit card could result in the credit card being

confiscated.

III. DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS:  Employees authorized to use District credit cards

are responsible for providing all necessary documentation required to process payment

on a timely basis.  Reconciliation through the software will be completed and the

necessary documentation provided as follows:

A. Attach the supporting documentation in accounting software within seven (7)

business days following a purchase.   If later than seven (7) days, an explanation

as to why it is late will need to be attached.

B. Appropriate supporting documentation includes but is not limited to delivery

confirmations, receipts and/or packing slips.

78



C. Employees will document Internet purchases by printing out the purchase

confirmation page from the vendor’s website.

D. Employees will document phone purchases by signing a copy of the page the

item was ordered from (i.e. catalog page, brochure, flyer, etc.)

E. State whether others who traveled, partook of meals, or otherwise incurred

expenses were District personnel.  If they are not, state who they were and

what connection they had with District business.

F. Attach original receipts to the software.  The receipt must include the name of

the business in which the purchase was made, an itemization of the goods or

supplies purchased, date, and total amount charged.  If receipt does not contain

the required information, an explanation as to why the information is missing

will need to be attached.

G. Include the General Ledger account code in which the purchase is to be charged

on the form.

IV. CONTROL:  The elected Board of Commissioners, or their designee, will review

expenditures in conjunction with the normal warrant review and approval.  The Fire

Chief or Finance Director must approve any exceptions to this policy in advance.

APPROVED: 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

79



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: March 13, 2023  

Item Title: Finance Staff Report 

Attachments:  

Submitted by: FD Robacker  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   

SUMMARY:     
 

1. January Checkbook & Financial Reports, numbers reported as expected for January. 
 
 
 

 

80



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
Operating	Funds	Summary	of	Revenue	&	Expenditures
General	Fund	001	&	EMS	101	as	of	 01/31/2023 1																						 	
Percent	Budget	Complete	as	of	report	date: 8.3%

2023	REVENUE	&	EXPENDITURES	SUMMARY	(Operating	Funds)

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCE 2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
Year‐To‐Date	
TOTALs A

Carryforward	from	Prior	Month
(Jan	is	Min	Cash	Flow	Reserve) 12,800,000$		 12,800,000$		 ‐$																					 ‐$																					 ‐$																							 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																						 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 $12,800,000 A
Total	 12,800,000			 12,800,000			 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 12,800,000		 A

2023	Current
Year‐To‐Date	
ACTUALS	as	of

	%	
Budget	

B.	REVENUE	(+) BUDGET JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 01/31/2023 Received B
Reg	Levy 29,860,089					 64,819														 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 64,819											 0.2% B
EMS	Levy 20,976,273					 25,629														 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 25,629											 0.1% B
EMS	Levy	Write	Offs (1,300,000)						 (114,282)									 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 (114,282)						 8.8% B
FBC 30,072,735					 67,843														 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 67,843											 0.2% B
Transports 4,242,000							 426,976											 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 426,976								 10.1% B
Transports	Paid	by	Levy 1,300,000							 114,282											 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 114,282								 8.8% B
Licenses	&	Permits 25,500														 400																				 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 400																		 1.6% B
Other	Charges	for	Goods	&	Svcs 2,232,783							 65,573														 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 65,573											 2.9% B
Grants	(Intergovernmental) ‐																					 254																				 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 254																		 100% B
Investment	Interest 220,000											 160,135											 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 160,135								 72.8% B
Miscellaneous	&	Other	Tax	Revenue 17,800														 275																				 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 275																		 1.5% B
Transfers	&	Other	Sources 3,438,000							 ‐																					 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 0.0% B

B
Total	Revenues 91,085,180			 811,904										 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 811,904								 0.9% B

2023	Current
Year‐To‐Date	
ACTUALS	as	of

	%	
Budget	

C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) BUDGET JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 01/31/2023 Spent C
Commissioners 64,259														 12,796														 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 12,796											 19.9% C
Commissioners'	Contingency 250,000											 ‐																					 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 0.0% C
Admin	&	Internal	Services 12,069,777					 868,861											 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 868,861								 7.2% C
Operations	(Suppression,	EMS) 62,716,835					 5,114,534							 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 5,114,534				 8.2% C
Overtime	‐	ALL	DIVISIONS 6,428,383							 655,316											 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 655,316								 10.2% C
Prevention	&	Education 2,355,121							 125,734											 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 125,734								 5.3% C
Fleet	Maintenance 2,129,847							 172,607											 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 172,607								 8.1% C
Transfers	to	ERF,	Facilities,	Projects 5,109,958							 ‐																					 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 0.0% C
Other	Uses ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 0.0% C

C
Total	Expenditures 91,124,180			 6,949,848						 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 6,949,848				 7.6% C

D.	TOTAL	CHANGE	BY	MONTH
[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (39,000)												 	 (6,137,944)						 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 (6,137,944)					 D

E.	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	01/31/2023 12,761,000$			 6,662,056$						 ‐$															 	 ‐$															 	 ‐$																	 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 6,662,056							 E

F.	Planned	Use	of	Savings 39,000													 	 39,000													 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 F

G.	Carryforward	(E	+	F) 12,800,000						 6,701,056								 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 6,662,056							 G

Created by: Tanya Robacker 81



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
General	Fund,	EMS,	and	Reserve	Funds	as	of
01/31/2023

Col	A Col	B Col	C Col	D Col	E Col	F

2023	REVENUE	&	EXPENDITURES	‐	GENERAL	AND	EMS	FUNDS

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCES

Checkbook
Gen	Fund	&	EMS
(001	&	101)

Gen	Fund	&	
EMS	

Reserves
Reserve	Fund

(011)
ERF
(015)

Facilities
(050)

TOTAL	Gen	
Fund,	EMS	&	
Reserves

1. Beginning	Balance	1/1/2023*	(Carryforward) ‐$																							 	 ‐$																 	 ‐$																 	 343,826$									 26,124$									 369,950$								
2. Minimum	Cash	Flow	(Working	Capital	Reserve) 12,800,000											 12,800,000				
3. 5%	Operating	Reserve	(Revenue	Stabilization) 4,556,210						 4,556,210							
4. Unreserved	Carryforward 6,036,481						 6,036,481							
5. Total	Beginning	Balances* 12,800,000									 6,036,481				 4,556,210				 343,826									 26,124										 23,762,641				

6. B.	REVENUE	(+) 811,904															 ‐																	 	 12,332											 ‐																		 	 ‐																	 	 824,236											

7. C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) 6,949,848												 ‐																	 	 ‐																	 	 93,226$										 7,698$										 7,050,772							

8.
D.	NET	CHANGE		[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (6,137,944)										 ‐																	 	 12,332											 (93,226)										 (7,698)											 (6,226,536)					

9.

E.	Preliminary	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	01/31/2023	
(Unaudited	and	subject	to	change) 6,662,056$									 6,036,481$		 4,568,542$		 250,600$							 18,426$								 17,536,105$		
*NOTE:	Beginning	Balances	Unaudited
Fund	Key:

10. 		Minimum	Cash	Flow	‐	Working	capital	reserve	that	gets	us	from	October	tax	payment	through	the	April	tax	payment.
11. 		5%	Operating	Reserve	‐	Revenue	stabilization/emergency	reserve	to	fund	expenditures	during	disasters,	moved	to	011	August	2020.
12. 		Unreserved	Carryforward	‐	Money	in	savings	in	the	fund,	available	for	use	in	the	same	manner	as	the	fund	it	resides	in.
13. 		Operating	Funds	(001	Gen	Fund	and	101	EMS	Fund)	‐	Available	to	cover	all	Salaries,	Benefits,	Supplies,	Services,	Capital	and	Debt.
14. 		Reserve	Fund	(011)	‐	Revenue	stabilization/emergency	reserve	to	fund	expenditures	during	disasters,	5	%	+	interest.
15. 		ERF	/	Reserve	(015)	‐	Reserved	by	Board	Resolution	to	fund	replacement	costs	for	equipment	and	apparatus.
16. 		Facilities	(050)	‐	Reserved	by	Board	Resolution	to	fund	building	maintenance	and	repairs.

Created by: Tanya Robacker 1  of  282



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
ALL	Funds	as	of
01/31/2023

Col	A Col	B Col	C Col	D Col	E

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCE

TOTAL	Gen	
Fund,	EMS	&	
Reserves

GEMT
(102)

Debt
(201)

Capital	Projects
(301)

Year‐To‐Date	
TOTALS

Beginning	Balance	1/1/2023*	(Carryforward) 23,762,641$								 16,001,870$								 501,184$														 15,325,609$								 55,591,304$		
1. Total	Beginning	Balances* 23,762,641								 16,001,870								 501,184														 15,325,609								 55,591,304				

2. B.	REVENUE	(+) 824,236														 518,056														 7,102																				 31,359																	 1,380,753							

3. C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) 7,050,772											 ‐																									 ‐																									 4,843																				 7,055,615							

4.
D.	NET	CHANGE	[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (6,226,536)									 518,056														 7,102																				 26,516																	 (5,674,862)					

5.

E.	Preliminary	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	01/31/2023	
(Unaudited	and	subject	to	change) 17,536,105$						 16,519,926$						 508,286$												 15,352,125$						 49,916,442$		
*NOTE:	Beginning	Balances	Unaudited ‐																						 	
Fund	Key:

6. 		GEMT	Fund	(102)	‐	Reserved	revenue	from	medicaid	transports,	restricted	to	use	for	EMS	operating,	capital,	and	facility	costs
7. 		Debt	Fund	(201)	‐	Reserved	revenue	source	from	the	Excess	Levy,	restricted	to	use	for	GO	Bond	Debt	repayment	only
8. 		Capital	Project	Fund	(301)	‐	Reserved	revenue	from	the	GO	Bonds,	restricted	to	use	for	capital	facilities,	furnishings,	and	potentially	apparatus.	

Created by: Tanya Robacker 2  of  283



FUND	301	CAPITAL	PROJECTS 40,857,305      
LIFE‐TO‐DATE	SPENDING 40,857,305      
updated	thru 1/31/23 0.00

2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

Div DivTi Account2 Account Desc 2021 2022 2023
200 Administration

53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 1,615 1,615
Sal & Benefits 658,060 658,060
54151 54151 Legal Fees 54,327 54,327
54911 54911 Contractual Services 252,693 252,693

200 Total 966,696 966,696

204 Logistics

56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 9,078 9,078
204 Total 9,078 9,078

205 Central Stores

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts (0) (0)
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 8,971 8,971
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 10,995 22,105 33,099

205 Total 19,966 22,105 42,070

230 Training

56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 488 488
230 Total 488 488

600 Station 60

53141 53141 Operating Supplies 878 878
53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 280 280
53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 39,563 39,563
54111 54111 Advertising 746 746
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 44,365 44,365
54502 54502 Other Operating Rental 6,874 6,874
54611 54611 Insurance 18,500 18,500
54911 54911 Contractual Services 148,534 148,534
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 3,388 3,388
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 10,177,326 10,177,326
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 92,080 92,080
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract (3,765) (3,765)
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 1,038,876 1,038,876
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 116,343 116,343
56244 56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 35,234 35,234
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 133,750 133,750
56421 56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 238,490 238,490

600 Total 12,091,462 12,091,462

3/9/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 1  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

84



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

601 Station 61

54151 54151 Legal Fees 2,499 2,499
54911 54911 Contractual Services 58,179 58,179
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 816,837 816,837
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 18,001 18,001
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract 1,875 1,875
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 187,906 34,033 78,023 299,962
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 9,861 9,861
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 26,670 26,670

601 Total 1,121,827 34,033 78,023 1,233,883

602 Station 62

54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 4,891 4,891
54911 54911 Contractual Services 1,200 9,749 10,949
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 9,762 9,762

602 Total 15,853 9,749 25,602

603 Station 63

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 713 713
53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 33,604 33,604
54111 54111 Advertising 751 751
54151 54151 Legal Fees 777 777
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 81,625 81,625
54911 54911 Contractual Services 40,148 40,148
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 466,669 466,669
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 4,007,131 4,007,131
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 77,975 77,975
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 459,515 459,515
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 50,720 50,720
56244 56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 28,870 28,870
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 80,577 80,577
56421 56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 30,930 30,930

603 Total 5,360,004 5,360,004

604 Station 64

54191 54191 Other Professional Services 1,208 1,208
54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 65,422 65,422
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 6,443 6,443

604 Total 73,072 73,072

605 Station 65

53502 53502 Communication Equipment 5,747 5,747
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,558 11,558

605 Total 18,109 18,109

606 Station 66

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 0 0

3/9/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 2  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

85



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

606 Sta 53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 0 0
54151 54151 Legal Fees 0 0
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 0 0
54911 54911 Contractual Services 0 0
56101 56101 Land Acquisition (0) 40,000 40,000
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 0 1,400 1,400
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs (0) 42,047 4,038 46,085
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs (0) (0)
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 0 0

606 Total (0) 83,447 4,038 87,485

607 Station 67

54911 54911 Contractual Services 110,000 110,000
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 17,272 17,272
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 1,554 1,554
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,763 11,763

607 Total 141,392 141,392

617 Training Center (67)

56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 17,970 17,970
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 0 0

617 Total 17,970 17,970

608 Station 68

56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 13,041 13,041

608 Total 13,845 13,845

609 Station 69

54191 54191 Other Professional Services 821 821
54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 108,777 108,777
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 4,675 4,675
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,114 11,114

609 Total 125,386 125,386

650 Maint. Shop

56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 5,655 5,655
650 Total 5,655 5,655

701 Station 71

53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 993 993
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 2,535 2,535
54502 54502 Other Operating Rental 500 500
54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 31,157 31,157
54912 54912 Fees/Permits 580 580
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 19,815 19,815
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 1,190 1,190
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract 176,226 176,226
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 78,809 78,809
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 5,698 5,698
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 14,679 14,679

701 Total 332,182 332,182

702 Station 72

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 376 376

3/9/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 3  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

86



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

702 Sta 53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 5,458 5,458
54111 54111 Advertising 483 483
54151 54151 Legal Fees 10,234 10,234
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 36,361 36,361
54611 54611 Insurance 8,000 8,000
54911 54911 Contractual Services 446,916 446,916
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 3,597,518 3,597,518
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 145,752 145,752
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 315,515 (45,000) 270,515
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract 12,867,594 12,867,594
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 1,320,968 1,320,968
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 257,157 257,157
56244 56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 30,189 30,189
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 123,781 123,781
56421 56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 1,366 1,366
54941 54941 Printing & Binding 197 197
54731 54731 Electricity 552 552

702 Total 19,168,417 (45,000) 19,123,417

703 Station 73

53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 6,349 6,349
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 15,636 15,636
54911 54911 Contractual Services 840 26,704 805 28,349
54912 54912 Fees/Permits 600 600
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 905,798 905,798
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 80,579 11,034 91,614
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 4,493 72,818 58,021 135,331
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 5,831 5,831

703 Total 107,979 79,167 1,001,557 805 1,189,508

Grand Total 39,579,817 68,200 1,204,445 4,843 40,857,305

3/9/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 4  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

87



2023 Board Discretionary Fund Activity

Beginning Balance: 250,000.00      

Request for Funds: Approved: Amount: Rejected

Total Requests to date: -                 

Remaining Funds Available as of: 1/31/2023 250,000.00    

01-2023 Financial Status Report

88



MONTH COLLECTIONS
OUTSTANDING

 
 

REG LEVY FBC EMS LEVY EXCESS LEVY TOTAL-MONTH
Total Collected 

YTD
*TAXES LEVIED / 
OUTSTANDING

83,342,310.00         2023 Budget
January $64,819.31 $67,842.93 $25,629.46 $5,319.71 $163,611.41 $163,611.41 $83,178,698.59 Amount to collect
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November 
December Amount to collect

Total Taxes YTD $64,819.31 $67,842.93 $25,629.46 $5,319.71 $163,611.41

*includes $0.71 (Regular), $0.50 (EMS) and Benefit Assessment

TAX & FBC COLLECTIONS MONTHLY

01-2023 Financial Status Report

89



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE  TRANSPORT COLLECTIONS

MONTH
TRANSPORT 

COLLECTIONS
GEMT 

COLLECTIONS
TOTAL
MONTH

TOTAL 
COLLECTED YTD

TRANSPORT 
COLLECTIONS 

REMAINING

4,242,000.00         2022 Budget
January $426,975.80 $518,055.72 $945,031.52 $945,031.52 $3,815,024.20 Amount to collect
February
March
April
May
June
July
August  
September  
October
November 
December

Total YTD $426,975.80 $518,055.72 $945,031.52

01-2023 Financial Status Report

90



Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary

Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Date    March 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:     

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD: 

SUMMARY: 

Recruitment 

 New Hires/Promotions/Transfers
o Support Specialist – Administration – 02.21.2023

 We welcomed Erika McInnis on February 21st as our new Support
Specialist – Administration.  As the backup for the Executive Assistant,
you will see Erika’s in the absence of Ariel.

o Help Desk Supervisor – 02.27.2023
 We welcomed Bex Brutzman into the brand-new position of Help Desk

Supervisor on February 27th.  Micah is excited to have them on board to
assist him in running the IT division.

o Support Specialist – EMS – 03.06.2023
 We welcomed Lacey Zuber on March 6th as our new Support Specialist –

EMS.  Lacey is filling the role that was vacated with the transfer of Denise
Ross to Training earlier this year.

 Current Recruitments
o Academy 23-1.2 (Laterals)

 We are currently completing the physicals and psychological
assessments for the second lateral recruitment we held.

 At the time of the writing of this AIS, we have fifteen (15) lateral
candidates starting with us on April 10th.

o Academy 23-2 (Entry Level)
 Interviews were held the week of February 13th.

 170 scheduled their interview
o 165 showed up for their interview
o 87 passed

 The top 70 candidates were invited to the next stage of Suitability
Assessments and backgrounds

91



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 All candidates passing the Suitability and background will then be 
invited to a Chief’s Interview, scheduled for late May 

 
o Landscape & Maintenance Worker 

 Interviews were held on March 6th 
 The top 3 candidates are going to a Chief’s interview on March 15th  

 
o Mechanic 

 We had 14 qualified applicants, who are currently completing a written 
exam 

 An Assessment Center will be held the week of April 3rd for those passing 
the written exam 

 Chief’s Interviews, background and other exams will follow 
 

 Upcoming Recruitments/Other Staffing work 
o All of the promotional tests (Lt, Cpt, BC and AC) 
o Remaining positions approved in the 2023 budget 

 
Other Projects 

 Job Analysis  
o We have rescheduled the Assistant Chief workshop for March 16th and the 

Deputy Fire Marshal workshop for March 28th     
 

 Policy/SOG’s 
o We are currently working through the final steps of a large overhaul of our policy 

(now SOG) regarding pregnant and breastfeeding firefighters. 
o Our goal is to update/move to SOG as many each month as possible, with a goal 

of all of them being done by the end of 2023.  
 

 Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) 
o Chief Morrow has engaged our consultant, Lawrence Garrett, to do an analysis 

of the leadership team and a presentation is to that team is scheduled for March 
13th.   

 
Negotiations/Non-Represented Changes 

 We are continuing to meet with Local 726 to negotiate the implementation of a number 
of items agreed to with their ratified contract. 

 We are currently meeting with neighboring agencies and the Local regarding shared 
services/consolidation. 

92



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: March 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Training Division Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by AC Benning 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1. Lateral academy on pace to graduate Friday.  

A.  Two weeks ahead of schedule 
B. Pinning ceremony in the MPR @ 16:00 on the 17th 
 

 
2. This month starts a rash of officer development training  

A. Instructor I, Instructor II, Fire Officer I, and Fire Officer II will all be offered 
over the next three months. 

 
3. The third of five driver academies has been completed 

A. Another dozen certified driver operators. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 

93



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 13, 2023 

Item Title: Field Operations Division Report 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: AC Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:    
 

1. Bo Schiemer’s Funeral Coverage 
A. Supported Tacoma Fire with Backfill Units, (1-Ladder, 1-Engine, and 1-Medic 

Unit) for Bo Schiemer’s Funeral Coverage on March 11.    
 

2. CERT, (Community Emergency Response Team) Program 
A. CERT, (Community Emergency Response Team) Program support to the City of 

Puyallup DEM  
 

3. GSH Helipad Fire Drill 
A. City of Puyallup DEM, Good Sam Hospital Helipad Fire Drill – Operations will be 

supporting and participating. 
 

B. CPFR will use this opportunity to exercise and update our GSH Helipad Protocol 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 

94



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 13, 2023 

Item Title: EMS Division Report 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: AC Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:   
 

1) New EMS Support Specialist 
A. Our new support specialist is here for the EMS Division.  Her name is Lacey 

Zuber and we are very excited to have her.  Please stop by St 60 and tell her hi. 
 

2) PLU Collaboration 
A. PLU collaboration involving Master’s and Doctorate level students working with 

CPFR. 
 

3) Narcotics tracking software upgrade. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
  
N/A 
 

95



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: March 13, 2023 

Item Title: Operations Section Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by DC Stueve 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Law Enforcement Collaboration 

A. We are attempting to reinvigorate response to violence training & exercises. 
B. We are exploring collaborative opportunities for wellness & defensive tactics. 

 
2. OAT – Training Consortium 

 
A. The core curriculum for Fire Module is in the process of adoption. 
B. The OAT group is leaning on the Consortium to do the coordination work 

associated with our regular enrichment training. 
 

3. SS911 
 

A. We have formed several work groups to achieve the strategic objectives set up by 
the PSCOC; the first of which is complete and ready for implementation. 

 
B. We will begin to cause SS911 policy & procedure review through the OPC. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

96



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report   

Attachments:  None 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow   
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
Strategic Plan Update 
Staff continues to work purposefully on the first two Thematic Goals of the District’s Strategic 
Plan. The first effort is associated with aligning individual performance and accountability with 
organizational performance and accountability. The second effort is about developing and 
executing with greater clarity how we allocate resources across the District. 
 
I have been very pleased with our efforts to date. The dialogue has been rich and everyone on 
the leadership team is engaged.   
 
Regional Cooperative Efforts 
Orting Valley- The Board Chair and I will be attending the Orting Valley Fire & Rescue Board 
Meeting on March 14th. The plan is to speak to the concepts we have developed for how 
Central Pierce and Orting Valley can potentially collaborate on service delivery. 
 
Graham- March 17th is scheduled as our first date to discuss the Battalion 91 concept with IAFF 
Local 726.  

 
NW Leadership Seminar 
Several Staff, along with two Commissioners attended the NW Leadership Seminar held in 
Portland. There were several speakers that offered wonderful insights into a host of topics. The 
event was well attended and several networking opportunities presented.  

 

97



Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve  

February 24, 2023 

Firefighter  
Kendal Cotter 

Dear Kendal, 

On behalf of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, I want to commend and acknowledge your actions 
taken on behalf of your fellow firefighter on August 3, 2022. 

On Wednesday, August 3, 2022, E69 was dispatched to 15801 110th Ave E for a possible 
overdose patient. Upon arrival you found what you initially thought was an employee who had 
possibly overdosed. After providing treatment, the patient was transported by CPFR.   

It was after the patient had left, that the events of that day began to develop. While trying to 
determine what the patient had taken FF George and yourself were exposed to a substance that 
affected both of you.  

After realizing what was happening to FF George, you immediately starting providing him care 
even while you were experiencing symptoms yourself. Realizing the seriousness of this call, you 
requested a medic unit from Firecomm, then alerted your officer to the situation. You placed the 
care of your fellow firefighter above your own.  

I apologize for the delay in this letter of recognition. I recently found out about your individual 
actions during this incident and wanted to acknowledge them. Your selfless actions on this call 
perfectly demonstrates our department values. I appreciate you and the professionalism you 
display each shift.   

Respectfully, 

Adam Jackson, Battalion Chief 

Cc: Personnel Fire 
BOC Packet 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave E, Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770  Fax

www.centralpiercefire.org

98

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/

	1 - 2023-03-13 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2023-02-27 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2023_03_13 Warrant Approval
	6A - BOD 3.30 AIS 2nd Reading
	6A1 - Policy 330 Credit Card Usage 01-01-22 OLD
	6A2 - BOD 3.30 CREDIT CARD USAGE CLEAN
	9A - 2023-03-13_AIS_Finance Update
	9A1 - 2023-01 Board Investment FINAL
	2023-01_01-BvA Checkbook
	2023-01_02-Fund Bal Monthly
	2023-01_03-Bond LTD
	2023-01_05-Board Investment
	01-2023 CONTINGENCY Financial Status Report
	01-2023 TAXES Financial Status Report
	01-2023 TRANSPORT Financial Status Report


	9B - HR Div Report
	9C - Training Div Report
	9D - Operations Div Report
	9E - EMS Div Report
	9F - OPSEC Div Report
	9G - FC Report AIS 3.13.23
	10A - Cotter atta boy



